CITY OF RICHARDSON

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - DECEMBER 2, 2025

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on December 2, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. in the Multipurpose
Room #CH157 of the Richardson City Hall, 2360 Campbell Creek Boulevard, Suite 525,

Richardson, TX.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

MEMBERS ABSENT:

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

BRIEFING SESSION

Jeremy Thomason, Vice Chairman
Michael Keller, Commissioner
Gary Beach, Commissioner
Kristen Schascheck, Commissioner
Joe Quirk, Commissioner

Bryan Marsh, Chairman

Nate Roberts, Commissioner
Rebecca Poynter, Commissioner
Byron Purdy, Commissioner

Tina Firgens, Director of Development Services

Andrew Bogda, Asst. Director of Dev. Services — Planning
Derica Peters, Senior Planner

Aaron Zilz, Planner 11

Anna Jo Castaneda, Executive Secretary

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with Staff at 6:30
p.m. for a discussion of regular agenda items. The briefing session was adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chairman Thomason called the regular business meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS

There were no public comments.

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Zoning File 25-20 — Special Permit — Willowbrae Childcare Academy: Consider and
act on a request for a Special Permit for a Childcare Center within a 12,450-square-foot
existing building on a 1.16-acre lot located at 500 N. Coit Road, and currently zoned LR-
M(1) Local Retail. Owner: Promenade Partners LP. Staff: Derica Peters.



2

Derica Peters, Senior Planner, presented the Commission with the details of the request for a
Special Permit for a Childcare Center. She stated that one (1) comment in opposition was received
from a local resident who cited concerns about existing cut-through traffic that would be worsened
by the addition of this use. She added that she was available for any questions.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked if there were any further questions for Staff, and seeing none, the
public hearing was opened, and the applicant was asked to come forward.

Mr. Buck Wheeler, Promenade Partners LP, 6917 Redstart Lane, Dallas, TX, stated the building
is difficult to lease to retail tenants due to the lack of visibility from Coit Road. He said the site
offers an opportunity for a childcare center, which requires an outdoor playground area. He added
that the proposed use is an improvement to what is there today and is a use that fits within the
broader vision of serving the surrounding neighborhood.

Mr. Wheeler addressed the concern raised by the neighbor about traffic, stating that a traffic impact
study was provided to the City to ensure a plan is in place to address the issues. He described the
various paths of traffic circulation into and around the property.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked if they owned the entire complex of office suites.

Mr. Wheeler stated they own an area of property in the northernmost portion of the shopping
center.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked about the compatibility of this proposed use with other tenants in
the center.

Mr. Wheeler answered that there is a physical therapy center, a few medical uses, and a few
restaurants. The peak hours of the childcare center do not conflict with the other businesses, and
this site could provide overflow parking for them.

Dr. Coleone Taylor Davis, Willowbrae Childcare Academy U.S. Operations Manager, 916 Redbud
Drive, DeSoto, TX, stated Richardson will be the third location in Texas. During pick-up and drop-
off times, parents are only on-site for approximately five (5) minutes. They studied the traffic
patterns and are conscious of the existing businesses and how the academy will fit into the
community. In addition, she said they looked at other similar businesses in the area to be
competitive but respectful of other brands.

Commissioner Keller asked about the number of Willowbrae Academies open today.
Dr. Davis replied they have six (6) locations in the U.S. and forty-two (42) in Canada.

Commissioner Quirk asked if they expect other businesses to be impacted when the temporary
traffic management cones are installed to divert traffic away from Northlake Drive.

Mr. Wheeler advised they would have traffic cones set up only during pick-up and drop-off times
and that they would monitor the effect on neighbors.

Commissioner Quirk asked if there is anything limiting ingress from Northlake Drive.



Mr. Wheeler said no.

Andrew Bogda, Assistant Director of Development Services — Planning, stated that traffic from
the remainder of the shopping center and the neighborhood could still utilize the drive aisle to the
north.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked if the applicant had reached out to the local homeowners’
association.

Mr. Wheeler said yes, and that he received feedback from the President, who stated the academy
would be an amenity to the neighbors. She expressed concern about how the traffic would impact
Northlake Drive; however, that conversation was held prior to the addition of the no-right-turn
measure.

With no further questions, Vice Chairman Thomason asked for any public comments in favor or
opposition.

Ms. Elise Doherty, 701 N. Cottonwood Drive, cited many concerns she has with the existing traffic
she experiences today and how the proposed use would make this worse for the area and negatively
impact the nearby businesses.

With no further speakers, Commissioner Schascheck made a motion to close the public hearing.
Commissioner Quirk seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if there will be someone managing the traffic queue.
Ms. Peters said that is correct.

Vice Chairman Thomason stated the landowner is trying to bring life to an older building in a
challenging location. He noted that HOAs in Richardson carry a lot of respect, and he appreciated
the applicant doing their due diligence by contacting them.

Motion: Commissioner Schascheck made a motion to recommend approval of the
request as presented. Commissioner Beach seconded the motion. Motion passed
5-0.

2. Zoning File 25-21 — Special Development Plan — Law Office: Consider and act on a
request for a Special Development Plan to allow for deviations to the sign regulations of
the PD Planned Development Main Street/Central Expressway Form Based Code
(Gateway Commercial Sub-district) for a 1.08-acre property located at the southwest
corner of S. Central Expressway and Dumont Drive, addressed as 600 S. Central
Expressway. Owner: Jaime Barron representing Londrino, LLC. Staff: Aaron Zilz.

Aaron Zilz, Planner II, presented the Commission with the details of the request for a Special
Development Plan (SDP) to allow deviations to the sign regulations of the PD Planned



4

Development Main Street/Central Expressway Form-Based Code. He stated no correspondence
had been received on this request and that he was available for any questions.

Vice Chairman Thomason asked if there were any questions for Staff, and seeing none, the public
hearing was opened, and the applicant was asked to come forward.

Steve Bulleit, Pro Signs, 5310 Fleetwood Oaks Drive, Dallas, Texas, stated the size of signs
allowed today would not be appropriate for the size of the building. He referenced signage on other
buildings along the block that are closer to the service road; however, this building is set back a
further distance. The wall sign on the side wall would only be slightly larger than what is currently
allowed.

Commissioner Schascheck asked if the SDP would be tied to the building.

Mr. Zilz answered yes; if the site were to redevelop, it would have to comply with the code or
request a new SDP.

With no further questions, Vice Chairman Thomason asked for any public comments in favor or
opposition. Seeing none, he closed the public hearing.

Vice Chairman Thomason stated he appreciates the professionalism of the sign business and that
making the sign larger is necessary to see the building from the street.

Commissioner Beach agreed, commenting that not all buildings are created equal, and this request
is appropriate for this building.

Commissioner Quirk agreed the proportions of the signs are right for where the building is located.
Motion: Commissioner Beach made a motion to recommend approval of the
request as presented. Commissioner Schascheck seconded the motion.

Motion passed 5-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Vice Chairman Thomason adjourned the regular
business meeting at 7:51 p.m.

BRIEFING SESSION CONTINUED

After the business meeting, the City Plan Commission reconvened the Briefing Session at 7:51 pm
to receive the staff report on pending development, zoning permits, and planning matters. There
was no discussion and no action was taken. The briefing session was adjourned at 7:57 p.m.

rce Chairman

731y an M arsta,




